

Monterey County

Board Order

168 West Alisal Street, 1st Floor Salinas, CA 93901 831.755.5066

Upon motion of Supervisor Potter, seconded by Supervisor Calcagno and carried by those members present, the Board of Supervisors hereby:

Public hearing held and adopted Resolution No. 13-340 to:

- a. Certify that the Board has reviewed and considered the Addendum together with the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Santa Lucia Preserve (EIR No. 94-005); and
- b. Approve a Map Amendment to increase the Homeland boundary of adjusted Lot 65 of the Santa Lucia Preserve Phase A Subdivision Map by 1.08 acres.(Map Amendment PLN130466/Vardell, 34205 Robinson Canyon Road, Carmel, Greater Monterey Peninsula Area Plan)

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 5th day of November 2013, by the following vote, to wit:

AYES:

Supervisors Armenta, Calcagno, Salinas, Parker and Potter

NOES: None ABSENT: None

I, Gail T. Borkowski, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Monterey, State of California, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of an original order of said Board of Supervisors duly made and entered in the minutes thereof of Minute Book 77 for the meeting on November 5, 2013.

Dated: November 5, 2013 File Number: 13-1142 Gail T. Borkowski, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors County of Monterey, State of California

By Wonise Huncodl
Deputy

Before the Board of Supervisors in and for the County of Monterey, State of California

Resolution No. 13-340
Resolution of the Monterey County Board of
Supervisors to:
a) Certify the Board has considered the
Addendum together with the Santa Lucia
Preseve EIR No. 94-005; and
b) Approve the Map Amendment to adjust the
Homeland Boundary of adjusted Lot 65 of the
Santa Lucia Preserve Phase A and B
Subdivision Map, by 1.08 acres.
[PLN130466, Vardell Living Trust, 34205 Robinson]
Canyon Road, Carmel (Lot 65 in Santa Lucia
Preserve), Greater Monterey Peninsula Area Plan
(APN: 239-061-011-000)])

The Map Amendment application (PLN130466) came on for public hearing before the Monterey County Board of Supervisors on November 5, 2013. Having considered all the written and documentary evidence, the administrative record, the staff report, oral testimony, and other evidence presented, the Board of Supervisors finds and decides as follows:

FINDINGS

1. FINDING:

CONSISTENCY – The Project, as conditioned, is consistent with the applicable plans and policies which designate this area as appropriate for development. The project involves the increase of the Homeland boundary of adjusted Lot 65 of the Santa Lucia Preserve Phase A and B Subdivision Map by 1.08 acres.

EVIDENCE:

- During the course of review of this application, the project has been reviewed for consistency with the text, policies, and regulations in:
 - the 2010 Monterey County General Plan;
 - Greater Monterey Peninsula Area Plan;
 - Monterey County Zoning Ordinance (Title 21);
 - Monterey County Subdivision Ordinance (Title 19);
 - the Comprehensive Development Plan for the Santa Lucia Preserve.

The project complies with all of the above texts, policies, and regulations with the exception of the Comprehensive Development Plan for the Santa Lucia Preserve ("Development Plan"). The Comprehensive Development Plan requires that residential development and all be improvements be contained within the Homeland areas. The Vardell property has development outside of the Homeland area and therefore is not consistent the Development Plan. The proposed Map Amendment would expand the Homeland area to include the existing development and ensure compliance with the Development Plan.

- b) The property is located at 34205 Robinson Canyon Road, Carmel (Lot 65 in Santa Lucia Preserve) (Assessor's Parcel Number 239-061-011-000), Greater Monterey Peninsula Area Plan. The parcel is zoned Resource Conservation, 40 acres per unit with Design Control and Site Plan Review Overlays or "RC/40-D-S". The subject property is not in compliance with all the rules and regulations pertaining to zoning uses and any other applicable provisions of Title 21. See Finding 4. The proposal is to amend the Santa Lucia Preserve Phase A and B Subdivision Map, filed in the Office of the Recorder of the County of Monterey at Volume 20, Cities and Towns, Pages 8 and 33, in order to expand the Homeland boundary on Lot 65 for the inclusion of existing structures. These uses are consistent with the RC/40-D-S zoning regulations, and therefore the site is suitable for the proposed amendment.
- c) Site Plan Review or "S" zoning requires review of development in those areas of the County of Monterey where development, by reason of its location has the potential to adversely affect or be adversely affected by natural resources or site constraints, without imposing undue restrictions on private property. The project does not involve, or include, the construction of any structures, but in the future, any proposed structures within the Homeland boundary would be subject to the regulations of Chapter 21.45 of Monterey County Code, in order to assure protection of the resources described previously in this paragraph.
- d) The project was not referred to a Land Use Advisory Committee (LUAC) for review because no LUAC exists for this area.
- e) The application, project plans, and related support materials submitted by the project applicant to the Monterey County RMA Planning Department for the proposed development found in Project File PLN130466.
- 2. **FINDING:**

SITE SUITABILITY – The site is physically suitable for the use proposed.

EVIDENCE:

- The project has been reviewed for site suitability by the following departments and agencies: RMA Planning Department. There has been no indication from these departments/agencies that the site is not suitable for the proposed development. Conditions recommended have been incorporated.
- b) Staff did not identify potential impacts to Biological Resources, Archaeological Resources, or Soil/Slope Stability.
- c) Existing Archaeological/Wetlands/Conservation/Scenic Easements are recorded on the subject property and will not be impacted by the proposed map amendment.
- d) The application, project plans, and related support materials submitted by the project applicant to the Monterey County RMA Planning Department for the proposed development found in Project File PLN130466.
- 3. **FINDING: HEALTH AND SAFETY -** The establishment, maintenance, or

operation of the project applied for will not under the circumstances of this particular case be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, and general welfare of persons residing or working in the neighborhood of such proposed use, or be detrimental or injurious to property and improvements in the neighborhood or to the general welfare of the County.

EVIDENCE:

- a) The project was reviewed by the RMA Planning Department. The respective agency has recommended conditions, where appropriate, to ensure that the project will not have an adverse effect on the health, safety, and welfare of persons either residing or working in the neighborhood. The applicant has agreed to these conditions as evidence by the application and accompanying materials and conditions.
- b) The purpose for moving (increasing) the location of the Homeland boundary is to relocate existing structures out of the Openlands and into the Homeland. The remaining lands will be put under a new Conservation Easement as Openlands, which will assure that there is a net benefit to the Protected Values of the Preserve and requirements of the Comprehensive Development Plan for Santa Lucia Preserve.
- c) The application, project plans, and related support materials submitted by the project applicant to the Monterey County RMA - Planning Department for the proposed development found in Project File PLN130466.

4. **FINDING:**

NO VIOLATIONS – The subject property is not in compliance with all rules and regulations pertaining to zoning. Violations exist on the property. The approval of this permit will correct the violations and bring the property into compliance.

EVIDENCE:

- a) Staff reviewed Monterey County RMA Planning Department and Building Services Department records and is aware of a violation existing on subject property.
- b) The Conservation Easements were required by the conditions of approval for the Santa Lucia Preserve Combined Development Permit. A violation of conditions of approval is a violation of MCC 21.84.050. The proposed project corrects an existing violation regarding the prohibited residential uses within the Openlands Conservation Easement. When implemented, the map amendment and new Conservation Easement will bring the subject property into compliance with all rules and regulations pertaining to the property and will remove the existing violation.
- c) The application, plans and supporting materials submitted by the project applicant to the Monterey County Planning Department for the proposed development are found in Project File PLN130466.

5. **FINDING:**

CEQA (Addendum): - An Addendum to a previously certified EIR was prepared pursuant to the CEQA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15164) to reflect changes or additions in the project that do not cause substantial changes or new information that would require major revisions to the adopted EIR. The Board has

reviewed and considered the Addendum together with the EIR for the Santa Lucia Preserve and finds, based on substantial evidence in the record, that there are no substantial changes in the project, no substantial changes in circumstances, and no new information of substantial importance which would require major revisions of the EIR due to the involvement of new significant effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects.

EVIDENCE:

- An EIR for Santa Lucia Preserve was prepared and certified by the Board of Supervisors on February 6, 1996 (Board Resolution No. 96059).
- b) The Addendum, attached as **Attachment G** to the November 5, 2013 Board of Supervisors Staff Report, reflects the County's independent judgment and analysis.
- Staff's analysis of the Santa Lucia EIR indicated that the reason for the creation of the Homeland boundaries was a compilation of analyzed resources and constraints, such as archaeology, biology and geology. The result of this analysis created the location of the existing homeland boundary on Lot 65. At that time, the area occupied by the gatehouse and associated shed (existing development) was located inside Lot 65, but outside of the designated Homelands area. An Openlands Conservation Easement was recorded in on all portions of Lot 65 outside the Homeland area, including the portion of the lot occupied by the structures. The Conservation Easement flatly prohibits, among other things, development, residential uses and structures with the Openlands as designated on the Final Map. The Map Amendment will bring the existing structures into an expanded Homeland area, and require the remaining lands to be designated as Openlands. The new Openlands designation assures that there is a net benefit to the Protected Values of the Preserve, and obligations under the Conservation Easement burdening Lot 65. The enlarged Homeland area is not located in an area which poses a risk to Protected Values of the site. All impacts (biological, archaeological, and geological) of the revise boundary are equal to, or less than the boundary evaluated under the Certified EIR.
- d) The addition of 1.08 acres to the Homeland area on Lot 65 does not increase the development potential of the parcel. The existing Homeland area on Lot 65 is already constrained. The Homeland is bisected down the center by a fault trace with a 50 foot setback on either side of the fault trace and a sewer easement. These areas encompass just over 1 acre of the 2.9 acre Homeland area. The fault trace setback area and the sewer easement reduce the developable portion of the existing Homeland area to less than 2 acres in two non-contiguous areas within the Homeland. See the map for Lot 65 in Volume 20 of Cities and Towns at Page 8.
- e) The original developer set a limit of 4,000 square feet for the main dwelling on Homeland for Lot 65. This limitation is enforced by the Santa Lucia Preserve Design Review Board. With the addition of the new Homeland area, the size of the main dwelling on Lot 65 will remain 4,000 square feet or less. Therefore, there is no increase in the

- development potential on Lot 65.
- f) According to the Santa Lucia Conservancy, there is no ecological value to the 1.08 acres of new Homeland area. In addition, the proposed project will add nearly 8 acres of fragile habitat area that will be protected in perpetuity by an Openlands Conservation Easement.
- g) By adding the new Homeland area with the existing structures, the future development on the property will be anchored on the southeastern portion of the existing Homeland area. This reduces the development potential on the northwestern portion of the Homeland area which contains greater habitat values.
- h) The application, plans and supporting materials submitted by the project applicant to the Monterey County Planning Department for the proposed development are found in Project File PLN130466.

6. **FINDING:**

MAP AMENDMENT – The Board finds that there are changes in circumstances that make the Homeland boundary as designated on the Santa Lucia Preserve Phase A and B Final Map in need of revision, that the modifications do not impose any additional burden on the fee owners of the subject property, that the modifications do not alter any right, title, or interest in the real property reflected on the recorded map, and that the map as modified conforms to Government Code Section 66474.

EVIDENCE:

- A Map Amendment is required to amend a recorded building envelope pursuant to Monterey County's Subdivision Ordinance (Chapter 19.08.015 County Code) and the Subdivision Map Act (Section 66469 and 66472.1 Government Code).
- b) The subject application (PLN130466) consists of an amendment to the Santa Lucia Preserve Phase A and B Subdivision Map, filed as Volume 20, Cities and Towns, Pages 8 and 33. The amendment is required because the applicant is proposing to move the "Homeland Boundary" (commonly referred to as a building envelope) on Lot 65 of this map. The existing parcel is 16.38 acres with a current Homeland Boundary of 2.90 acres. The proposal would expand the Homeland Boundary south-easterly and increase the size to 3.98 acres. The purpose for moving the location of the boundary is to comply with a Settlement Agreement, to allow the inclusion of existing structures within the Homeland, and remove them from the Openland Conservation Easement area.
- building envelope (Homeland), as previously created, no longer appropriate or necessary. When the lot was created, development existed on site, which was not included in the Homeland designation. The existing development is not located in an area which poses a risk to protected resources on the site (biological, archaeological, and/or geological). Impacts resulting from the revised (expanded) building envelope (Homeland) are equal to, or less than the boundary evaluated under the Certified EIR.
- d) The modification (expansion) of the Homeland Boundary would not impose any burden on the fee owner of the subject property because the

- modification has been requested by the property owner.
- e) The modifications do not alter any right, title, or interest in the real property reflected on the recorded map. This modification has been agreed upon through a settlement agreement among the property owner, the Santa Lucia Preserve Association, and the Santa Lucia Conservancy.
- f) The map, as modified, conforms to the provisions of Government Code 66474. None of the findings for denial of the map amendment under Government Code section 66474 can be made.
- Monterey County Code Section 19.08.015.A.7 requires that the map amendment be considered at consecutive hearings by the appropriate decision making body(s) that approved or recommended the original tentative map. The Planning Commission held a hearing on October 9, 2013 and recommended approval to the Board of Supervisor by a 10-0 vote. The Board of Supervisors held a duly noticed public hearing on November 5, 2013.
- h) The application, plans and supporting materials submitted by the project applicant to the Monterey County Planning Department for the proposed development are found in Project File PLN130466.

DECISION

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, based on the above findings and evidence, the Board of Supervisors does hereby:

- 1. Certify that the Board has reviewed and considered the Addendum together with the Environment Impact Report for the Santa Lucia Preserve (EIR No. 94-005); and
- 2. Approve the Map Amendment to adjust the Homeland Boundary of adjusted Lot 65 of the Santa Lucia Preserve Phase A and B Subdivision Map, filed as Volume 20, Cities and Towns, Pages 8 and 33 in the Office of the Recorder of the County of Monterey, by 1.08 acres, in general conformance with the attached draft amended map (Attachment B-2) and subject to the attached conditions (Attachment B-1), all being attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

PASSED AND ADOPTED upon motion of Supervisor Potter, seconded by Supervisor Calcagno and carried this 5th day of November 2013, by the following vote, to wit:

AYES: Supervisors Armenta, Calcagno Salinas, Parker and Potter

NOES: None ABSENT: None

I, Gail T. Borkowski, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Monterey, State of California, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of an original order of said Board of Supervisors duly made and entered in the minutes thereof of Minute Book 77 for the meeting on November 5, 2013.

Dated: November 5, 2013 File Number: 13-1142 Gail T. Borkowski, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors County of Monterey, State of California

By Clenise, Dancock
Deputy